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CB2009-06-06316
WITNESS

heri Williams ML) )ﬂu

ummerville Police Department

pocker No. 2009-GS-08-1912

The State of South Carolina
County of Berkeley

I

I

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

AGENCY CASE NUMBER
9047398
' September Term 2009
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER‘
-093627 , -
THE STATE
DATE OF ARREST
) YS.
fune 11,2009 B
ACTION OF GRAND JURY T M-akﬂn(li Ley"’ ic L Keem Terry
. DOB:
True Bill B/M
AOL,WQA.?- CMmA,Qw =
Foreperson of Grand Jury o P -
Dater 2 O - 6 Indictment for
VERDICT Murder
§16:03-0010
7CDR; 0116
Foreperson of Petit Jury Daite: = — —

INDICT
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. STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

{ |
COUNTY OF Berkeley
STATE ‘ VS,
Makandi Leviticus Akeem Terry

AKA:
Race: BLACK Age: 23

Sex: M
oos: [ s~
o .
City,State,Zip: _Charleston, SC 29405
.

DL#: . SID#: )
*CDL Yes[]' No[J CMV Yes[] No[] HazmatYes[[] No[]
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was

g )

TO: Volintary Manslaughier

N N W N St o Nt Nt N

INTHE COl;':,""r!“OF GENERAL SESSIONS
INDICTMENT/CASE#:

A/WE:  J093627
Date of Offense:  _6/9/2009
S.C.Code § ;_16-03-0010, 0020

CDR Code #: 0116

2009-GS-08-1912

SENTENCE SHEET

[] CONVICTEDOF or  [XJPLEADS

in violationof § |

{3 NON-VIOLENT [JSERIOUS

Thechargeis: [ As Indfeted, [X) Lesser included Offerssc,
Thepleais: [ JWitho{t Negotiations or Recommendation,

ol the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code #
(XIMOST SERIOUS

[]Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury.

0217
[JMandatory GPS{CSC
w/minor Ist or Lewd Act)

[1817-2545

e eaamn by Bome ot priemes 0+ SRTe ST TS

(defendant’s initials)
ndation by the State,

O Reco

SC Bar# .

y‘J ()
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is mited to the
dayslmonthslﬁ@ or

for a determinate term o
and/or to pay a fine of $
of §

IZ/St;te Department of Corrections,

[J underthe Youthfal Offender Act notto exceed
; provided that upon the service of

; pluk costs and assessments as gpplicable®; the balance is suspended with probation for

2
—gat

[0 County Detention Center,

—_—years
days/months/years and/or payment

months/years and subjedt 1o South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of

probation, which are indorporated by reference.
INCURRENT or (0 CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:

The Defendant is to be given creditfor time serv:d pursuant to
by the State Department ofCommf‘ﬁd Woe l?l 20

. Code

§ 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied

[J The Defendant is t(} be placed on the Central Repistry o&' Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C $ection 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) td ship,transport,possess,or riceive a firearm or ammunition,
' , SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

[JRESTITUTION: []) Deferred [[] Det Waives lea-ing JOrdered  PTUP
Total: § | plus 20% fee: .5 days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED D
[ Set by SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab, or Job Corp.

— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling Od
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing O
§ 14-1-206 (Assessmenty 107.5 %) 3 Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv.{Surcharge) $100 __sm pmts. of $ beginning
g';:;ﬂ;g}’(‘;’u(:’”' ;"’:ﬁf" no — $ paid to Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breatl| Test) $25 % Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public DeffPrab) £$500 &
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 g 0 )
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Courtj Surcharge) $150 %
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) £50 S
§ 56-5-2942()) (Vehicle] Assessment) $40/fca %% [] Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,

Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) s h
3%to County (if paid in installments) b
TOTAL : b/,

Clerk of Co
Court Reporier:
errAMT IO

cpul)

§ 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
during probation.

Presiding Judge
Judge Code:
Sentence Date:
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The State of South Carolina

Summerville Police Department County of Berkeley
AGENCY CASE NUMBER COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
09047398
September Term 2009
W —e— e — o——
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER — — —
J-093627 , .
THE STATE
DATE OF ARREST
YS.
June 11, 2009 o
ACTION OF GRAND JURY Makand! é;v% jeus Alcems Terry
True Bill B/M
“Foreperson of Grand Jury * Indictment for
Date: - - > ) ’
VERDICT Murder
§16-03-0010
CDR: 0116
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STATE QF SOUTH CAROLINA) AFFIDAVIT
COUNTY OF BERKELEY ) WARRANT # J-093627
TOWN OF SUMMERVILLE ) OCA # 09-047398

Personally appeared before me, one Det. Sheri L. Williams who, first being duly swom, deposes

and says that _
MAKANDI LEVITICUS AKEEM TERRY

did within this town, county and state on the date of June 9, 2009, violate section 16-3-10 of the
criminal Jaws of the State of South Carolina in the following particulars:

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE
MURDER

The affidnt states that there is probable cause to belicve that the defendant named above did
commit the crime(s) set forth, and that such probable cause is based on the following facts:

THAT ON JUNE 9, 2009, LOCATED IN THE TRAFFIC CIRCLE ON HOLIDAY DRIVE,
WEATHERSTONE SUBDIVISION, IN THE TOWN, COUNTY, AND STATE AFORESAID, THE
DEFENDANT, ONE MAKANDI__LEVITICUS AKEEM TERRY, DID WILLFULLY,
UNLAW IILI:X;,TAT@tFEbONIOUSI:Y*'WIT-”!-FMM:ICE:KFORETHUUGHTZVTGEKTFETAWE’
16.3=10-OF THE- SOUTH. CAROLINA_CODE_OF LAWS (1976),_AS-AMENDED,"MURDER;-IN
THAT-F E»DEEENDAWﬁDlI;;S;;@QLTﬁE;\[@:HM”?TERRETE‘JKMES?ANDERSON??A“‘TZ"EEY\\‘
WOUNDNG=RIM=—FACTS_ TO PROVE "THE—ABOVE_ARE. _WRITTEN--AND-"VERBAL’
STATE ENTS. FROM-WITNESS-(MAZY.CK)-WHO STATED THE-VICTIM-HAD'ARRANGED-TQ,
PURCH? SE=—IEEEGAE=—DRUGS.—(MARIJUANA)==FROM=—AN-=INDIVIDUAL— AT —THE

ot

AFOREMENTIONED. LOCATION. -THE-WITNESS-(MAZYCK)-STATED- THAT-HE-OBSERVED,

THE-DE "ENDANT-SEATED=IN"THE'BACK s*e:zg@fjﬂ&ﬁ%éf@éj@@ﬁ}o&L RED SUV
FOUR DPOR VEHICLE-WRITTEN.AND VERBAL STATEMENTS BY-WITNESS(ELMORE) WHO
STATED THAT-HE-OBSERVEDTHE DEFENDANT EXIT-THE:ABOVE VEHICLE AND-SHOOT
SEVERAL- TIMES“AT-THE-VICTIM.. WHO-WAS -FLEEING - THE-AREA™WITH -WITNESS
(MAZYGK).-THE VICTIM APPEARED TO BE SHOT ONCE IN THE TORSO AND ONCE IN THE
LEG AREA.” THE VICTIM WAS PRONOUNCED DEAD AT THE SCENE. DURING A SEARCH OF
THE CRIME SCENE AREA MULTIPLE CASINGS WERE LOCATED ALONG WITH THE
DEFENDANTS CELLULAR PHONE, A BLACK MOTOROLA FLIP PHONE WITH COLOR
SCREEN (SERIAL # [NSSSESEENEEENN)= THE WITNESS (MAZYCK) POSITIVELY
IDENTIRIED THE DEFENDANT FROM A PHOTOGRAPHIC, ARRAY. ALL OF WHICH IS

AGAINST THE FORM OF THE STATUTE IN SUCH CASES MA ND PROVIDED.

. £

ARE &

Address: 300 West 2P Ty&dh Sizeet
Summerville, 29483
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BAIL set by

Judge

on

Name:

WITNESSES

Address:

Type and Amount:

Name of Surety:

Telephone:

Name;

Address:

PRELIMINARY HEARING hetd by

Judge

on

Defense Altorney:

Decision: f' .

poo -

- . ‘-
=

Judge

DISPOSITION before

on

by

(indicate jury trial, bench trial, plea, nol. pros.. etc.)

- Disposition;

Sentence:

JURORS

Telephans;

Name:

Address:

Telephone:

Name:;

Address:

Telephone:

Neme:

Address:

Telophone:

Name:

Address:
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Namsa:

Address:

Telephone:

Name:

Address:

Telephone:
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT
)
COUNTY OF BERKELEY )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on September 9, 2009 the Grand Jurors of Berkeley
County present upon their oath:

Murder

That Makandi Leviticus Akeem Terry did, along with a co-defendant, in Berkeley County on or about
June 9, 2009, willfully, feloniously, and intemionally kill the victim, Terrell J. Anderson, with malice
aforethought, either express or irﬁplied, by means of shooting, and the victim did die as a proxir;late result
thereof on or about Juae 9, 2009 in, Berkeley County, South Carolina, in violation of §16-03-0010 of the

South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace'%nty of the State, and contrary to the statule in such case made and provide
W [ K 7&

DORIE C. BIAGIANYI
ASSISTANT SOLY¥CITOR

-
-M_'.:
O I
A
y 'J. 20

B

L
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )  IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF BERKELEY ) NINTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
)
)
Makandi Terry, #353344, ) 2013-CP-08-2228
: )
Applicant, )
) ORDER OF DISMISSAL %
v. )
) & ]
State of South Carolina, ) _ﬂu —
Respondent.- )
) z
= .r'. »-..‘
o \J

This matter comes before the Court by way of an Application for Post-Conviction Rel¥® filed
October 2, 2013. Respondent made its Return on January 6, 2015. An evidentiary hearing into the
matter was convened on July 21, 2015 at the Charleston County Courthouse. Rodney Davis, Esquire
represented Applicant. J. Rutledge Johnson, Esquire, of the South Carolina Attorney General’s
Office, represented Respondent.

At the hearing, Applicant testified on his own behalf. William=Thrower, Esquire also
testified. This Court had before it a copy of the records of the Berkeley County Clerk of Court,
records from the South Carolina Department of Corrections, the applicaﬁon, the State’s Return and
the'guilty plea transcript.

§ROCEDURAL HISTORY

The Applicant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections
pursuant to orders of commitment of the Berkeley County Clerk of Court. The Applicant was
indicted at the September 2009 term of the Berkeley County Grand Jury for murder (2009-GS-08-

1912). The Applicant was represented by William Thrower, Esquire.
Page 1 0of 9
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On November 30, 2012, the Applicant pled guilty to the lesser included offense of voluntary

———

manslaughter. The Applicart was sentenced by the Honorable R, Markley Denmis to-confimermentior
a'period-of cighiteen yeats. The Applicant did not appeal his conviction or sentence.

dnhis-Application; the Applicant alleges:that he'is being held-ircustody unlawfally-forthe

following-reasons:
L—-Ineffective:assistance of counsel.-=— ==

a—Induced-and coerced Applicantto-plead-guilty.
. b._+Failed-to-put-a-defense-at-the sentencing stage.
c==Failed-to-challenige-the-prosecution’s presentation 61 évidence.
d-—=Failure=fo-adequately develop aiid-present-evidence-retrieved-by:prosecution.
&=-Failed to. make.an-independent-investigation-of the-facts-and-circumstances-of the
@ ccase:
Df.t:fFiilé“d to:-filean-appeal.
g~ Failed:to-call co-defendant’s-as eyewithiesses:
*h—Counsel 6perated under-a conflict of interest by working-with-an attomney-hat-was
discharged/fired from-the-same case and-did-fiot-advise the:Applicant that-they
were-working-with-that-attorney.
Z=“Involuntary guilty-pléa.
“a~—Would nothave pled-guilty“if cotnsel had'not misinformed him that-the-Judge
would give-less-time-due:to-the facts of the-case:

At-the-hearing;-the-Applicant-proceeded-on-his-claims of_ineffective assistance-of-plea
counsel>
SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

Atthe-evidentiary hearing;-Applicanttestified-he fired a previous:attorney and hired Counsel.
Applicant¢laimed he asked Counisel to file an appéal o his behalf? Applicant also stated he thought
Counsel should have filed a motion to reconsider on his behalf and that he asked Counsel to file this
motion after his plea. Applicant testified he met with Counsel multiple times in April, June and

August of 2011, but his mother did not pay all of Counsel’s fees. Applicant stated August of 2011

was a potential trial date, but did not plead until November of 2012, Applicant-claifhed-he did-not
Page 2 0f 9
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ngej%aaﬁlgﬂ@E@. Applicant claimed had he reviewed the Rule 5

materials, he would not have plead, but instead relied on Counsel’s advice.

Appl—i&nggsjﬁed‘-@m’ﬁﬁ'@?’ﬁﬁﬁ‘é“d?ﬁe\“élé’ment’srof:murdéﬁbﬁﬁhd—not-explaimvelﬁ’n"ta?y
manslaughter. He stated he now knows that it is an intentional killing. He:claimed-had-he:known
this;:“hefﬁrﬁﬁl‘diﬁaVé?i‘ﬁsi‘s‘téd’-iix?ﬁeu}gﬁiﬁ‘g‘-a_tg'_gg:égplican_t;s_tatnd;hg; discussed-no-otlier-defenses.
Applicmt—’clﬁiﬁEd‘@f‘Jﬁéfaﬁ:rﬁ?sﬁiﬁ: the~discovery matéridls; and-Applicant-wanted-thé
autopsy:rep'omandﬂS!R=reports.:A’-pplir;antzclaimeﬁzef&'unﬁﬁiﬁ:n;S'Fdiscuss:any:inconsis_tent
s.tatéments-. |

Applicant claims the plea came “out of the blue.” Applicant testified Counsel said the plea
range was 0-20 for voluntary manslaughter, but that if his mother did not pay attorney’s fees, he
would drop the case. Applicant then said Counsel stated “1 can’t promise you” but the judge should
give Applicant up to fifteen (15) years. Applicant stated he was in jail for 3.5 years prior to plea.

App;li,c_ant:therfte‘st‘i'ﬁEd‘Hﬁe‘c:falrle’dftHé‘tTOnVErsatiﬁﬁ‘*W‘ith:Judge:Denrﬁs:at-'his;p]ea-_ande_that:hea
disputed.the-facts-of the"case> Applicant claimed he did not intentionally kill énybody, but that
victim pulled a gun on him and there was a struggle over the gun. Applicant claimed Counsel told
him not to argue with the judge. |

On cross-examination, Applicant admitted he was satisfied with Counsel at the plea. He
ad;niﬁed that he waived his constitutional right at the plea, including the right to challenge the
evidence éﬁd p'ursue a trie;l. Applicant admitted ;mbody threatened him or promised him anything t6
get him to plead guilty. He also testified he understood all of Judge Dennis’s questions and

ansﬁered them truthfully.

Page 30f 9
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On re-direct examination, Applicant testified that at the time of the plea, he wer'1t off of face
value, but did not see the discovery or inconsistent statements, o

Counsel testified he has been practicing criminal law since 1991 and his current practice is
75% criminal law. Counsel stated he was retained by Applicant’s mother and that he received the
Rule 5 materials from previous counsel. Counsel testified he met with Applicant once a month until
the plea and that the plea was not “out of the blue” as described by Applicant. Counsel stated the
solicitor in the case changed and the plea offer was relayed to Applicant.

Courisel testified that the tacts Teflected that Applicant and-co=defendants decided to-makea
transaction-formarijuana. Counsel testified there were inconsistencies in the witness statements
because it was a drug deal in which the conversation turned heated. Counsel stated there were four
(4) shots fired, two of which hit victim in the back. Counsel stated _there was GSR located on
Applicant but none on the victim. Counsel then testified the codefendants cooperated with the State
and would have testified against Applicant at trial. Their testimony would have been that Applicant
laughed about sﬁooting victim. There would also have beén testimony that Applicant actually got
out of the car because he dropped his cell phone. The main evidence against Applicant was that the
victim was running away when Applicant shot him. Counsel testified he relayed the inconsistent
statements to Applicant, as well as explaining the glements of self-defense, voluntary manslaughter,
involuntary manslaughter, and accident. ‘Counsel stated-Applicant ﬁnderstood:the‘ir?cbiiVéﬁﬁtiﬁi@
and-that hieexplained-to-Applicafit that-his codefendants-would-testify-againsthinrat ial-

Counsel testified he did not promise Applicant a certain sentence but explained that there was
a negotiated cap of twenty (20) years. Counsel-testified-he-briefly-considered-filing-a-motion-to

teconsiderzbut-thought-it-was more-likely-that-Judge-Dennis. would-have-increased-Applicant’s

Page 4 of 9
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sentence. Counsel testified he was shocked Applicant did not receive a 20-years sentence. Counsel

&ﬁ,ﬁﬁ;@@sﬂppﬁﬁﬁt%ﬁe’dﬁtﬁfe an appeal and explained-an appeal fo Applicant.

Counsel testified Applicant agreed it was in his best interest not to file an appeal and that Counse] .

found no legal basis on which to file an appeal.

On cross-examination, Counsel testified the guilty affidavit Applicant signed was discussed
on the same day as the plea, but each statement on the affidavit was not checked by Applicant.
Counsel testified he discussed the facts of the case with Applicant, including the alleged fact that
three (3) cars were involved and that the victim was trying to grab something in the car. Counsel
then testified he did not specifically remember discussing GSR with Applicant. Counse] also
testified Co-defendant Magwood “spilled the beans” to law enforcement and continued to get in
trouble and that Co-defendant Sanders-would_have-testified agaifist-Applicafit. He-learned-abour
what:each:co:d'efé'ﬁ'dmﬁldIWdE’rTé?frﬁﬁiTth'éiiﬁa’sfaé&i?é—’a’.’t’tomey"s. Counsel admitted he did
not file an appeal in this case nor did he file a motion to reconsider because Applicant could have
gotten a more severe senience.

On re-direct examination, Counsel testified he did not tell Applicant how to answer the plea
jﬁdge’s questions and that it was Applicant’s decision to plead guilty. '

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

This Court has had the opportunity to review the record in its entirety and has heard the
testimony at the post conviction relief hearing. This Court has further had the opportunity to observe
the witnesses presented at the hearing, closely pass upon their credibility and weigh their testimony
accordingly. Set forth below are the relevant findings of facts and conclusions of law as required

pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. §17-27-80 (2003).
Page 5 0of 9
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Ineffective Assistance of Counsel

Applicant-alleges-he-received-ineffective assistance of counsel—In-a-PCR-action;**[t]he

burden-6f proof is-on thie applicant to prove-his allegations by a preponderance-ofithe-cvidence?”
Frasier-v-State; 351 S.C. 385, 389, 570 S.E.2d 172, 174 (2002) (citing Rule 71.1(e), SCRCP).
Where ineffective assistance of counsel is alleged as a ground for relief, the Applicant must prove

that "counsel’s conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial process that the trial

cannot be relied upon as having produced a just result.” ; Strickland V. Wishington, 466 U.S. 668,
104 S.Ct. 2052, 2064 (1984);‘Butler.v.-State, 286 S.C. 441, 334 S.E.2d 813 (1985).

The proper measure of performance is whether the attorney provided representation within
the range of competence required in criminal cases. Courts presume that counsel rendered adequate
assistance and made all significant decisions in the exercise of reasonable professional judgment.
Butler, Id. The Applicant must overcome this presumption to receive relief. Che;g[' y. State, 300
S.C. 115,386 S.E.2d 624 (1989).

First, the Applicant must prove that counsel's performance was deficient. Under this prong,

attorney performance is measured by its "reasonableness under professional norms." Cherry;'300-3

S:Crat117,385:8-E.2dat 625, citing Strickland? Second,; counsel's-deficient performance musthave>
prcj_gciioed:therApplicgnttsucﬁithﬁt;“there:i'st:a*réasonable:proﬁabi‘-liﬁ’- ’-ﬂfét—,ibﬁt:;fo;:cb’un‘sel';s,
unprofessional-errors; the result-of the:proceeding-would-hiave been-different."-Chieify,-300-S:Cat’
“A17-185-386-S:E-2dat6252 With respect to guilty plea counsel, the Applicant must show that there is
a reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s alleged errors, he would not have pled guilty and

would have insisted on going to trial. Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 106 8.Ct. 366 {1985).

This Court finds the Applicant’s testimony regarding Counsel’s ineffectiveness is not

Page 6 of 9
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credible while also finding Counsel’s testimony is credible.

This Court also finds Counsel provided effective assistance of counsel in this case. Counsel
advised Applicant of all of the charge and the sentence the charge carried. Specifically, Counsel
testified he discussed all of the elements of murder, voluntary manslaughter, involuntary
manslaughter, self-defense and accident with Applicant. Counsel testified hie discuissed-the-discovery
materials-with-Applicant,-including the inconsistent-statements-and the fact-that-Applicant’s-co-
deferdants"Were going to-(estify againstApplicant attrial-Counsel also-negotiated-with the State i
Applicant’s-best interesi. Specifically, Counsel negotiated a plea to a lesser included offense of
murder to a cap of 20 years. This Court finds Applicant made the decision to plead guilty on his own
accord with the help of learned counsel. Additionally, this Court finds Applicant made this decision
freely and voluntarily without any threats or promises from anyone else. Furthermore, this Court
finds that it was ultimately the Applicant’s decision to plead guilty.

This Court further finds it was Applicant’s decision not to file an appeal in this case. While
Applicant claimed he asked Counsel ‘to file an appeal, Counsel testified he discussed an appeal with
Applicant, and Applicant agreed it was in his best interest not to appeal his case. Counse] also
testified he did not file a motion to reconsider Applicant’s sentence because he thought Judge Dennis
could increase Applicant’s sentence and was rather surprised that Judge Dennis gave him less than
20 years.

This Court finds the Applicant has failed to meet his burden of proving counsel’s
performance was deficient or that he was prejudiced thereby.

Accordingly, this Court finds the Applicant has failed to prove the first prong of the

Strickland test — that Counsel failed to render reasonably effective assistance under prevailing
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professional norms. The Applicant failed to present specific and compelling evidence that Counsel

committed either errors or omissions in his representation of the Applicant.

This Court also finds the Applicant has failed to prove the second prong of Strickland — that
he was prejudiced by Counsel’s performance. This Court concludes the Applicant has not met his
burden of proving counsel failed to render reasonably effective assistance. Therefore, these
allegations are denied.

, CONCLUSION

Based on all the foregoing, this Court finds and concludes that the Applicant has not
established any constitutional violations or deprivations that would require this court to grant his
application. Therefore, this application for post conviction relief must be denied and dismissed with
prejudice. This Court also finds as to all other allegations that Applicant failed to present evidence
of such claims and thus, this Court deems them abandoned.

This Court notifies the Applicant that he must file and serve a notice of appeal within thirty
(30) days from the receipt by counsel of written notice of entrjr of judgment to secure the appropriate
appellate review. See Rule 203, SCACR. Pursuant to Austin v. State, 305 S.C. 453 (1991), an
Applicant has a right to an appellate counsel’s assistance in seeking review of the denial of PCR.
Rule 71.1(g), SCRCP, provides that if the applicant wishes to seek appellate review, PCR counsel
must serve and file a Notice of Appeal on the Applicant’s behalf. Applicant’s attention is directed

to South Carolina Appellate Court Rule 243 for appropriate procedures for appeal.
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IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

1. That the Application for Post-Conviction Relief must be denied and
dismissed with prejudice; and

2. The Applicant must be remanded to the custody of the Respondent.

AND IT IS SO ORDERED!

s o o

Réger efiderson
Presiding Circuit Court Judge

f-_ % Y 2015 Ninth Judicial Circuit

, South Carolina

2013-CP-08-2228
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EXA

SAVAGE LAW FIRM

15 PRIOLEAU STREET
CHARLESTON, SC 29401
TEL. (843) 720-7470 FAX (843) 720-7478
http://www.savlaw.com
Video Conferencing Address: 96.83.158.37

ANDREW J. SAVAGE, Il J. SCOTT BISCHOFF, Il
Certified Criminal Trial Advocate - NBTA DONALD L. MCCUNE, JR.
January 17, 2018

LEGAL MALIL - Please Open in Presence of Inmate
Mr. Makandi Terry

SCDC # 00353344

c./o Livesay Correctional Institution

PO Box 580

Una, SC 29378

RE: Correspondence dated January 8, 2018
Dear Mr. Terry:
I received and reviewed your letter dated January 8, 2018.

As Tunderstand it, your question to me is: if your case had proceeded to a trial, would your
co-defendant Tywanza Sanders have testified against you? That is a question that I cannot answer
completely as your case did not go to trial; however, if Tywanza had been issued a subpoena by the
State to testify, then he would have been compelled to do so.

TymaS*offered-m opportunity to_provide a statement.to-the- prosecgt}q_r;pnoﬁo*yga

Zplea-m‘ ox@%ﬂmhowe@,ﬂwe did fiet-meet-with-the-Solicitor;ior-did-we-provide:therm”
w1’ch~any_s’ta’cement'or,a551stance~1ndche:£as<‘:7
W

Please let me know if you have any other questions that we can help with.

With best wishes, I remain

Andrew J. Sayage, III

AJS,lII/hch
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